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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

_ TRUSTEES’ REPORT . .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustees.present their annual report together with the financlal statements and auditors’ report of the Charitable
Company for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’
report and a Directors’ report and Strategic report under company law.

The Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 19 primarily serving a catchment area in and around High Wycombe,
Buckinghamshire, stretching from Stokenchurch to Gerrard’s Cross. It has a pupil capacity of 1,398 and exceeded
.capacity in the school census on 5 October 2023, Pupil numbers deciared in the school census were 1,423,

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum

and aricles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Governors act as Trustees of the Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and are also the Directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as the Royal Grammar School High
Wycombe.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year except as noted are included in the Reference and Administrative
Details on page 1. : .

Members’ Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the event
of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may
be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and fabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the labllity of the Trustees Wh|ch by vrrtue of any rule of |aw would
otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust.or breach of duty of which they may be .
guitly in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance in the year was £79,

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Trustees of the Academy Trust as at 31 August 2023 either came to the end of, or will serve, thelr remalning term of
office. The term of their office s 4 years, Trustees may serve for a successive period of 4 years If re-elected, 1t is the
board's practice to ask Trustees to stand for annuat election after they have served for a tolal of 8 years.

+ Members may appoint up to 10 Community Governors, _

« Members may appoint Academic Staff Governers nominated and elected by the Academ;c Staff and Support Staff
‘Governors are nominated and elected by the Support Staff provided the total number of Academm Staff Governors -
(including the Headmaster) does not exceed one third of the total number of Governors. _

«  Wycombe Royal Grammar School Feundation may appoint up to 6 Foundation Governors approved by the Members.

¢ Parent Governors shall be elected by parents of registered pupils at the Academy,

+ Members may appaint up to 3 Co-opted Governors,

+ The Secretary of State may appoint such Additional Governors as he/she thinks fit.

The Headmaster, Mr Philip Wayne, is an ex-officio Governor.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees
The induction provided for new Trustees incfudes an Information Pack contalning copies of polscres procedures minutes

accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. They are given a
tour of the Academy and the chance to meet with staff, including the Finance Director to discuss Academy finances, and
students. As there are normally anly two to three new Trustees per year, induction tends to be done informally and is
tailored specifically to the individual although each new Trustee Is allocated an experienced Trustee to act as mentor
during their first 6 months. All Trustees are required to have DBS checks and undertake safeguarding training.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company fimited by guarantee) _

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT {continued)

Organisational Structure
The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the Academy's
performance and making major decisions about the strategic direction of the Academy, capital-expenditure and senior

staff appointments.

The senjor leadership team comprises the Headmaster, Deputy Headmaster, four Assistant Heads, Head of Boarding
and the Finance Director. These managers control the Academy at an executive level, implementing the policies laid
down by the Trustees and reporting back to them. As a group the senior leadership team is responsible for the
authorisation of spending within agreed budgets, the appointment of staff and for the day to day operation of the Academy
including the organisation of teaching staff, facilities and students.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel _
The remuneration of the Senlor Leadership Team is set by the Strategy Committee. This Committee comprises the Chalr
of Governars and Chairs of the Education, Finarice & Audit and Human Resources Committees. o

The only Trustees pald by the Academy are Staff Governors, Their remuneration is a'ppro'ved in line with the policies on
Teacher and Support Staff Pay, as approved by Trustees. These policies are reviewed annually.

Trade union facility time
Relevant Union Officials

Number of employees who were relevant union Full-time equivalent employee number
Officials during the relevant period :

3 ' 2.4
Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 1
1%-50% 2
51%-89% it
100% 0

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time -

Total cost of facility time o L .. E477.
Total pay bill £148,178
Parcentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 0.3%

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities 100% of paid facility time hours

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Wycombe Royal Grammar Schooi Foundation, a registered charity, holds the majority of the |land and buildings in trust
for use by the Academy school. The objectives of this Foundation are to provide benefits for the Royal Grammar School,
including the provision of boarding accommodation and to promote the education of present and former pupils of the
school who are in need. ' - U

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and Aims

In the last year the Headmaster, Governors and Senior Leadership Team have continued to develop the five-year
strategic plan. This plan sets out the school’s Mission and its Vision for the future.

Our Vision Is lo offer our students an exceptional ali-round education,

Our mission is to nurture the individuai potential and character of every student ta heip them become confident, socialiy-
responsible young peaple, prepared for happiness and success in their adult lives.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023 -

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Objectives, Strategies and Activities
The Academy is passionate about:

« Instilling a love of learning through intellectual curiosity and independent and creative thinking

+ Reinforcing a strong set of life-long personal values based on respect, integrity and aspiration

» FEncouraging each individual to take personal respons:bmty, to chailenge themse%ves to explore opportunmes and to
- fully realise their potential

« Taking pride in personal achievements based on endeavour and commitment

« Encouraging an awarenass of the world outsids and a sense of service to the local and wider community

The Academy’s main objectives are to deliver:

¢ Well-rounded individuals who can articulate the difference between right and wrong

e An exceptional,-inspirational academic education that allows each student to achieve their full potential

» The widest possible range of extra-curricular activities through which boys establish important life skills and develop .
their social, sporting and cultural abllities c ' ' - -

« A stimulating and rewarding environment that encourages and celebrates success

+ The best modern facilities within which to [earn and develop

In order fo achieve these objectives, the Academy focuses on 7 "strategic plflars”.

« Recruiting and retaining high performing staff, providing exceptional leadership at all Ievels

« Recruiting and retaining the most able students, from al backgrounds

« Enabling all students to achieve their academic potential, through an ambitious cumculum outstandmg teaching and
high-quatlity support : . .

¢ OQutward looking engagement to connect W|th all stakehoider groups, past and present :

» Adopting a commercial cutlook to state education fo resaurce an unparaileled experience far its staff and students

« The provision of high-quality accommodation, facilities, technology and resources to support outstanding teaching
and learning

» Promoting the all-round devetopment of the student

Public Benefit :
The Trustees of the Academy Trust have complied with their duty te have due regard to the guidance on Publsc Benef:t
published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties. The activities undertaken to further the

Academy Trust's purpose for the Public Benefit include:

« Provision of an outstanding aducation supporting the wishas and aims of the lecal community,
s Use of the school premises by the community.

« Support to other schools, including those in Special Measures (as a National Support School).
e Charitable works locally, nationally and internationally

STRATEGIC REPORT ‘
in the previous 3 years the prevalence of the Covid-19 pandemic has exerted a major impact on the effective running of

the Academy. These effects now appear te be behind us and this academic year has'seen a return to “normality”, with in
class lessons and national examinations,

There has been a major negative Impact on the well-being of many of the students and staff and the effects continue to
reverberate. Many members of our community have suffered levels of stress and anxiety. Fear and uncertainty remain
for many. While the allocation of additional “catch-up" funding from central government was greatly appreclated it will be
a major challenge to ensure that every boy is able to catch up to where they should be in order to achieve their potential
and to continue to be able to access the pastoral support they require The well -being of aii staff and students remams

our highest priority.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Achievements and Performance

The grades achieved in national exams at both GCSE and A’ Level f{)r 2023 were a step up on 2018 (the most recent o

comparabie examination season). Year on year comparisons should be treated with a degree of caution as the methods
of assessment (Teacher or Centre Assessed grading) have been different for the last 2 years, It is more appropriate to
compare results with 2019, thelast year of national exams before the pandemic.

Of all those who applied to Higher Education for entry for 2023, 18 boys gained entrance to Oxford or Cambridge
Universities {16 in 2022). 22 boys have gone on to study medicine/dentistry.’veterinary science (7 in 2022},

Of the 2023 Year 13, 190/210 boys are maving on to tertiary education in 2023 or are intending fo after a gap year in
2024. This includes Higher and Degree Level Apprenticeships. Of those who applied through UCAS, 76% achieved their
first-choice institution. )

Year 13 students achieved 77% A’- B across 21 different A-level options including French, German, Spanish, Politics,
Psychology, Ancient Hisfory and DT to name but a few.

In our most poputar A-level, Mathematics, 125 students achieved a noteworthy 86% A*-B

in the BTEC Foundation Diploma in Sport, 95% of students achieved a Distinction or starred Distinction.

Qverall, 24% of grades at A*¥ and 55% at A*A.

The results within boarding were even better, with 80% of grades at A*-B.

‘Year 11 students achieved 74% 9-7 grades at GCSE. 90% of students achieved a gréde 7 or higher in maths. OFf our
over 2000 GCSE's taken 27% of all grades were Grade 9 and over half of all grades (53%) were Grade 8 or 9.

Alihough yet to be confirmed, we believe that our Progress 8 Score will be ‘well above average’ at >1.00

Over 80% of Year 11s achieved the government’s 'strong' EBacc measure, which cansists of grade 5s in English, Maths,
History or Geography, at least two Sciences, and a l.ahguage).

To ensure that standards are continually raised, the Academy operates a programme of observation of lessons, staff
training and visits by former inspectors. The Academy also undertakes a comparison of resuits from entry to Key Stage
3 and GCSE and from GCSE to A level, to assess value added and participates in nailona( programmes looking at value
added through the key stages.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

The primary “non-financial® indicator is the excellence of students' attalnment in public examinations. This has been
covered above, The Academy monitors 5 key financial indicators:

« Student numbers, This is the primary source of income. The minimum target is 1,396 students, F"or the academlc
year 2022-23 the number on the register was 1,423,

s Total staff costs as a propomon of income from government, Thas is the prfmary area of expenditure The target is to
hold this at less than 90% of income, of which more than 75% should be teaching & boarding staff costs. For the -
academic year 2022-23 staff costs, net of boarding, were 86% of grant Income, of which 59% related to teaching staff
costs. The average number of (full time equivalent) employees over the year was 183, of whom 89 were teaching
staff directly involved in teaching and learning.

« Tsaching staff turnover, Retention of experienced staff is important in order to ensure continued excellent teaching.
The target is greater than 85% retention rate, At the end of the academic year 15 full time equivalent teacher positions
left the school, which implies 83% retention. The Academy had a number of retiremenis in 2022-23 and a greater
than usual number of relocations within the UK and abroad, which lad to a higher than usual rate of attrition,

« Total expenditure in line with Budget, in order to achieve a balanced budget. For the academic year 2022-23 total
educational expenditure at £8,216 Million was 1% below budget.

o Unrestricted reserves. Positive unrestricted reserves ensure that the Academy is able to meet its liabilities. The target -
is to hold reserves of at teast £50,000. It has been a key focus fo control expenditure in order to build reserves and
to enable continued investment in the estate. At the end of August 2023 unrestricted reserves were £551,626.

These KPIs are regularly reviewed by the appropriate sub-committee of the Governing Body.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE -
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Going Concern : : . : , : -
After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Governers has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financiat statements, Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern
basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

As outlined below the main source of funding for the Academy is provided by government grants and financial uncertainty
exists regarding the extent to which increases in funding will be sufficient to meet cost increases from inflation. In addition,
whilst the government has agreed to fund the increase in employers’ contributions to the Teachers' Pension Scheme
from 16.4% to 23.68% for 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2022-23, financial uncertainty exists as to whether this wiil continue for
2023-24 onwards. There is also uncertainty as to what extent increases in employer contributions to the Local
Government Pension Scheme will be required in order to help address funding deficits, Further, confirmation is awaited
on the extent to which government funding wilt be provided to meet teachers’ pay awards. With regard to both pension
funding costs and teachers’ pay the Academy follows national and local precedents. However, the current high level of
national inflation, higher than expected wage increases and energy cost escalation continue to create significant
challenge to the Academy's financial position,

The Academy has set a budget for the year 2023-24 which generates a surplus. The Trustees are mindful of the uncertain
operating environment over the coming months and continue to work closely with the Academy’s management to monitor
the situation. As at time of writing, the Trustees are confident that this target witl be achieved.’ o

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Academy continues to operate against a very chalienging financial background. During the year, the Trustees have
considered the ongoing impact of the conflict in Ukraine and associated inflationary pressures caused to the UK and
Worldwide, which potentially could affect rental income either from tenants or for the Boarding House, and parental and
other donations. So far there has not been a materially adverse impact. However, Trustees continue to adopt a cauticus
approach.

The main source of funding for the Academy is DfE/ESFA and LA income. In 2022-23 this income increased by 7.44%
(£590K)} compared to the previous year. Support grants of £28,941 were received in 2022-23 to include National Tutoring
Support, Educational Recovery, Mental Health and Ukrainian student assistance. The Trustees set a balanced budget
for the Academy, expecting to end the year with an Improved surplus compared to 2021-22.

Reserves Policy

At 31 August 2023 the total funds comprised:

Unrestricted ' N . £551,626
Restricted: Fixed asset funds £7,880,346
Pension reserve {£348,000)
Other {£20,230)

£8,062,742

The Academy has set its policy for unrestricted reserves in conjunction with the Wycombe Royal Grammar School
Foundation (see note about Connected Organisations, above) and this poiicy has been approved by both the Trustees
of the Foundation and the Governors of the Academy, Unrestricted reserves are those that are freely availabie to spend
on the Charity's purposes, at the discretion of the Governors, .

Given this background, the policy of the Governors is to hold unrestricted reserves within the Academy that are no lower
than £50,000. The Academy has managed to achieve this through a programme of stringent cost management.

The deficit on the pension reserve relates to the support staff pension scheme where, unlike the teachers’ scheme,
separale assets are held to fund future liabilities as discussed in nole 24. The deficit can be met in the longer term from
any combination of increased empioyer or employee contributions, increased government funding or changes to scheme
benefits. The restricted funds wili be spent in accordance with the terms of the particular funds.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Investment Policy
The Academy holds assets to fund the running of the schaol. Consequently, capital volatility cannot be folerated, soitis
the policy ta invest only in cash deposits denominated in sterling. Cash balances are deposited with the Academy's
bankers and in institutions within the Insignis Cash Solutions Third Party Cash Deposit Services. Deposits are spread by
counterparty with maturities set to match planned income and expenditure and, other than balances heid by the
Academy’s primary bankers for working capital purposes, no more than £85K of cash is deposited with any one Institution
in order to minimise risk. A minimum. of £ 332,000 is kept available for immediate access (the equivatent to two weeks.

grant income).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties .

The Academy Trust practices through its Board, namely the Governing Body and the constituted subcommittees, risk
management principles. Accordingly, the Trustees have adopted a risk management strategy which sets out the
processes and responsibilities for risk management in the Academy, These processes, through the maintenance of a
Risk Register, ensure that foreseeable risks are appropriately identified, assessed, controlied and with mitigating actions
monitored. However, the extraordinary events in the wake of the pandemic could not realistically have been foreseen,

controlled or mitigated.

The Risk Registér, which is maintained by thé Senior Leadership Tearh, is .re'viewed by the Finance & Audit C'ommittée
every term. Any major risks highlighted through this process are brought to the attention of the Main Board and they
continue to be reported until the risk is adequately mitigated. _ .

The Governing Body accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operatiohs but maintains an objective not to run
unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks to be resolved by the
Governing Body collectively, whilst more minor risks are dealt with by senior executive officers

The Trustees have identified four broad areas of risk — safety, financial, infrastructure and reputation.

a. Rigorous procedures are in place to ensure the safety and security of students and staff. A Health and Safety
Committee meets termly, with a désignated Health and Safety Governor. Any issues identified are promptly
addressed. Students are closely supervised at all times. Tight control Is exercised over site visitors and a rigorous
anti-bullying policy is enforced. An effective Child Protection policy is in place and is reviewed annualiy in order to
safeguard all students.

b, Financial risk is mitigated through the discipline of an annual plan, approved by Governors in the summer term
for the following academic year, starting in September. This sets the expenditure limits for all departments. [t also
contains a small contingency fund for the Headmaster to manage minor fluctuations. The financial aim of the
annual plan is to operate within a balanced budget. The Academy has a Scheme of Financial Delegation that -
defines the financial expenditure limits, systems and procedures to be followed by all levels of management. This

scheme is reviewed annually by the Finance & Audit Committee. Further information is included under the system .- "~

of internal cantrols on page 14. Financial progress is reported regularly to the Senior Leadership Team and is
reviewed by the Finance & Audit Committee. The Academy's Responsible Officer reviews transactions on’a
regular basis to ensure that procedures are being followed rigorously.

. Itis a major challenge to maintain and upgrade the older buildings and infrastructure including 1T systems on the
school site. This risk is obviated by managing a planned maintenance and upgrade programme. In the event that
unforeseen significant maintenance is required the Academy is able to approach the Foundation for funding.
Should unforeseen incidents occur the Governors have ensured thal adequate insurance caver is in place. The .
Academy has prodiced a strategic development plan to upgrade the buildings and the facitities over the long
term. This wili be funded through bidding for various government and other grants, as well as through fundraising
programmes involving parents and atumni. ' ' '
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Principal Risks and Uncertainties {continued)

d. Demand for student places at the Academy Is very high, based on its reputation for providing an outstanding and
rounded education. This reputation could be undermined should academic standards fail or be perceived to be
deteriorating. Student progress Is closely monitored throughout their school career, not only at the time of exams
and there is a major focus on academic performance within the strategic plan. Students are constantly mentored
and coached to achieve their full potential. Having assessed the report in detail the Trustees are very confident
that the most recent Ofsted report {October 2019) has not affected the reputation of the school in a material way
as the report was very positive and the areas for improvement are restricted to the development of curriculum
which is already well in hand. The academic results continue to develop in a very strong trajectory, benchmarking
well agalnst our peers. Reputation could also be impacted either through the loss of experienced senior staff or
seriously inappropriate behaviour or incident involving -senior staff. Either could potentially lead to a drop in
academic standards, reputation and ultimately a reduction in parents selecting the Academy. Career paths are
provided with training and development pians to underpin this. For key posts succession plans are in place. The
school has a clear code of conduct for all staff that is documented in the Employee Handbook, which is updated
regularly with changes advertised to staff,

FUNDRAISING

The Academy raises funds to support specific areas of the schoot through voluntary parentat donations. The Academy
ran a short campaign, with the support of professional fundraisers, to part fund Phase 1 of the Sixth Form Centre, but the
norm is that any such work is carried out through our Foundation and Alumni Department. Participation is not bound by
any voluntary scheme or standard and the activity is closely monitored by the school's management. There have been
no complaints received by the Academy in respect of this fundraising activity. - '

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

The overall future aims and objectives have been outlined above in the section headed Objectives, Strategies and
Activities. The main financial objactives for future periods are predicated on a return to a normal operating environment
in the aftermath of the pandemic. We aim to:

s Operafe a balanced budget year on year. . . _ o

» Optimise the number of students on roll, particufarly in the 8" Form. This will have a significant impact on income
from 2022-23 onwards '

» Maximise income, through seeking grant funding and developing trading activities in order to continue to rebuild
reserves

» Provide funding to upgrade, maintain and refurbish facilities for students

Key strategies are targeted at teaching and learning, Improved outcomes for students, improved facilities and community
engagement. In addition to embedding the Schaol's Vaiues of
: Respect, Integrity and Aspiration

These include:
¢ Teaching and Learning:

e Recruiling and retaining the best quaiity staff

¢ Developing clear and consistent working practices

¢« Embedding the schoot's Character Education programme

« Professional development, Including seeking and evaluating best practice examples from schools in both the

state and independent sectors
» Development of digital learning

e " Improved Quicomes:
» Reviewing the curriculum in-line with Ofsted’s recommendations and constructing a new cost-effective and
time-efficient timetable ' ' ' '
Enhancing even further the co-curricular provisien
A clear focus on Pastoral Care, ensuring safeguarding is at the heart of everything that the school does.
An emphasis on student and staff well-being
improving examination results, university success and the employability of our students
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

FLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS (continued)

¢ |mproved Facilities:
« Planning and undertaking a continuous refurbishment programme, inciuding IT and related equipment
infrastructure
Bidding for grant funding, including the ESFA Condition Improvement Fund
Fundraising
Provision of improved facilities for the sixth form
The development of Boarding
Maintenance of staff accommodation .
Access point refurbishment
improving disabled facilities

¢ Community Engagement
« Developing alumni refations
Building a culture of stakeholder consultation
improving links with feeder schools
Encouraging parental input frem all backgrounds
Helping to ensure parents understand and appreciate what ihe school offers

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

The schoo! does not hoid cash or assets as a custodian for any third party.

AUDITOR

in so far as the Trustees are aware: |

« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's.auditor is unaware; and

« the Trustees have taken ail steps that they ought to have taken to make themselv.es'aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor Is aware of that information,

The Auditors, BKL Audit LLP, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be proposed at the

Annual General Meeting.

The Trustees' Repott, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of governors as the company
directors, on 4 December 2023 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

Benedict Casemore

B Casemore
Chair of Governors
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
. (A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE S'TATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Royal Grammar School High
Wycombe has an effective and appropriate system of control, financiai and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide
" only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Headmaster, as Accounting Officer, for
ensuring financlal controls conform to the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibiliies assigned to it in the Funding Agreement between the
Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and the Secretary of State for Education. The Headmaster is also
responsible for reporting to the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Annual deciarations of interest are made'by each Trustee for the Trust's re'gister'of interest. If any Trustee has
an interest in any matter discussed at Board meeting, they are required to disclose such conflicts and do not.
participate in related discussions or decisions.

Governance
The information on governance included here supplements that desecribed in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The board of Governors has formally met 4 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Governors was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Outofa

o . : S attended  possible
8 Abbas Warraich {Community Governor) Resigned 12,07.23 0 4
R Ali {Parent Governor} 2 4
B Avery {Community Governor) 4 4
L Bigneli {Staff Governor) Resigned 25.03.23 2 3
B Carr {Community Governor} 1 4
B Casemore {Chair, Community Governor) 4 4
G Flashman {Parent Governar} 1 4
T Fossey {Staff Governor} 4 4
M Fuller {Community Governor) 4 4
M Goaodier (Staff Governor) . . 3 -4
D Hayes {Community Governor, Vice Chair) 4 4
A Hussain {Community Governot) Resigned 31.12.22 0 2
T Jawed (Foundation Governor) Appointed 20.03.23 2 2
R King (Parent Governor) Appointed 20,03.23 2 2
D Markham {Co-opted Governor) 4 4
T Maunder {Foundation Governor) Resigned 27.06,23 2 3
S Mukerji {Co-opted Gavernor) 3 4
J Nichols {Community Governor) Resigned 04.07.23 3 4
G O'Keeffe {Pareht Governor) ' ' ' 4 4
R Roberts {Community Governor) Appointed 20.03.23 2 o2
K Swamy {Parent Governor) Appointed 20.03.23 2 2
N Warnock-Horn {Community Governar) - Resigned 31.12.22 2 2
P Wayne (Headmaster and Accounting Officer) 3 4
J Woods-Ballard {Community Governor) Appointed 26.06.23 1 1

During 2021 an in-depth self-evaluation was conducted and the results were considered by the Board of
Governors in June 2021. This exercise is due to be revisited in the 2023-24 reporting period. In the majority. of
areas under evaluation responses were very positive,
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance (continued)
However, 5 focus areas for improvement were identified:

« Improved strategic planning supported by more targeted and relevant KPls
« Improved engagement with parents, staff, boys and the wider community

¢ Greater focus in the performance management of staff

+ Regular Governor visits (when possible safely again)

« Encouraging more robust challenge by all governors

Action plans were developed in support of each of these areas and progress agalnst these plans is rewewed
regularly by the Governang Body, . :

[n addition to annual safeguarding updétes each Trustee is encouragad to undertake 3 training modules p.a.
specific to their individual needs and interests. :

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committes of the main governing body. [ts purpose is to oversee the
annual budget preparation and in-year monitoring of financial performance. It incorporates the internal audit
function to monitor the risk and control environment of the Academy on behalf of the Main Board,

A Jones, as Finance Director, has atiended all meetings. Durlng the year J Newman a Chartered Certlfled
Accountant and Responsible Officer attended 2 meetings.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible

N Warnock-Horn (Chair) (Resigned 31.12.22) 2 2
D Markham (Chair) (Appointed 01.01.23) 4 4
B Casemore 4 4
T Fossey . -3 4
T Jawed (Appointed 20,03.23) 0] 1
8§ Mukerji 4. 4
4 4

P Wayne (Headmaster and Accounting Ofﬂcer) _

The Board have considered and reviewed the quality and relevance of data presented to them during the year,
They have considered its relevance against the Academy development plan and long-term objectives as well as
testad its ability to explain and demonstrate the characteristics and measures of schoof performance. In addition
to academic ‘progress and attainment throughout the key stages, data measures have included attendance,
behaviour and exclusions as well as the differentiation of these measures’ against targeted groups and
characteristics such as Pupif Premium, ethnicity, and EAL. The Board are satisfied that the data presented has
been compiled with due rigour and Is duly comprehensive in informing the Trustees of thé progress made
against the Academy's objectives and targets.

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the Headmaster has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good
value In the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outco_me achieved in return for the taxpayer rescurces received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Governors where value for money can be improved, including
the use of penchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered
improved value for money by continuing to develop procurement processes and through the use of specialist
support where appropriate.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Review of value for money (continued)
Examples include:

« The School following a competitive tender process conducted by procurement specialist Tenst Services Lid,
appointed Brayborne Facilities Services Lid to deliver cleaning services to the School estate. The contract
was initially awarded for a 3-year period and commenced in mid-October 2023. The School has seen a
significantly improved service delivered to the estate with associated cost efficiencies.

« The School following a competitive tender process, appeinted BK Audit LLP to. deliver audlt and other
associated accountancy services in April 2023, which has delivered further cost efficiencies.

+ Sports Hall roof deck was fully repiaced and work completed in January 2023, with the assistance of a -
successful CiF Bid.

« In conjunction with the Sporis Hall roof deck replacement, with both Main Board and Foundation Trustee
approval, following a mini tender exercise, the School engaged with CJ Solar Lid to install 131 Bauder Solar
pahels 50Kw system and Solis Inverter on the roof deck, greatly benefiting the School and for future CIF bids
demonstrating that the Schoo! is proactively decarbonising. Work was completed in January 2023
Anticipated CO2 saving (tonnefyear) 11,090kg and ROl of 3.6 years.

« The Schoal, following a competitive tender exercise, engaged with Nevilie Spemai Projects Lid to undertake
the construction of a new Sixth Form Centre; Work commenced in July 2022 and was completed in February
2023, :

» The School was successful in its CIF B|d for the replacement of fire doors in the Junior Block, Maths Block,
Language Block and Science Block. Phase 1 of the work commenced in August 2023, with Phase 2 and 3
due to take place in Cctober 2023 and February 2024,

+ Following on from the successful delivery of the new Sixth Form Centre, the decision was made in
conjunction with both the Main Board and Foundation Trustee approval, to engage with Neville Special
Projects Ltd to undertake Phase 2 of the Sixth Form Centre project in-the adjacent Junior Block. Work
commenced in July 2023 with practical completion due in Qctober 2023.

«  The Schoo! with both the Main Board and Foundation Trustee approval, following & mini tender exercise,
engaged with Swimex Ltd to undertake refurbishment of the swimming pool. Work commenced in August
2022 and was completed in August 2023,

s The Schoo! with both the Main Board and Foundation Trustee approval, foliowmg a mini tender exercise,
engaged with Tuskar Construction Ltd to undertake the conversion of the Maths Block Mezzanine into two
new Maths classrooms. Work commenced in July 2023 and was completed in August 2023

s The School with approval under the Scheme of Financial Delegation took the decision to invest in Solar
panels for the Boarding House. Following a mini tender exercise, the School has engaged with JoJu Sotar
Ltd fo install 114 Canadian Solar panels, 47Kw system and Solis Inverter to the Boarding house roofs, Work. -
is due fo take place in October 2023, with practical completion: anh{:lpated ih November 2023. Anticipated
02 saving (tonne/year) is 9,620kg and ROl of 4 years,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk at a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
fallure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provzde reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of llnternal confrol is based on an on- goang process designed fo:

“ identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Academy Trust's policles, aims-and objectives
- avaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact shouid they be realised
- to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The system of internai control has been in place in the Royal Grammar School Academy Trust for the period
ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financlal Statements.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANGCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academic Trust's significant risks that has been In place for the period ending 31 August 2023 and up to the date
of approval of the Annual Report and Fmanmal Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Governing
Body.

The risk and control framework

The Academy’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regutar management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability,
In particular, it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financial reporis
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees; ‘

« regular reviews by the Finance & Audit Committee of reports which mdlcate fmancral performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes; :

+ setting targets to measure financial and.other performance;

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guldelines. The key document Is the
Financial Scheme of Delegated Authority which defines expenditure limits for all levels of management and
the processes or procedures to be foliowed in seeking authorisation

« delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

« ldentification and management of risks through the discipline of a formal Risk Register. Identified risks are
delegated to the most appropriate committee to monitor on a termly, basis.. The overall register is, .
consolidated and maintained by the Finance & Audit Comm;ttee Any changes are reported {o the Govemlng .
Board each term. . : :

Day to day management responsibility of financial matters rests with the Finance Director, supported by the
Finance Manager.

The board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and decided not to appoint
an internal auditor, However, the board of Trustees has appointed Mr J Newman, who is a Chartered Certified
Accountant, as Responsible Officer (RO'). The RO’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and
performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. The RO’s checks dre carried out in 6
maonthly oycles

The report covering the peried September 2022 to February 2023 was delivered to the Finance & Audit
Committee in June 2023. The scope of the checks included: Payroll; Payroll Reconciliation's; Purchasing; Bank
Account control, Petty Cash procedures; Fixed Assets register. .

No material issues were identifled.

The report covering the period March 2023 to August 2023 was delivered to the Finance & Audit Committee in
November 2023. The scope of the checks included: Payroll; Credit Cards procedures; Income (Trips, Letting's,
Boarding Fees, ESFA income); Transaction Reports; Budgets & Monitoring; Register of Interests.

No material issues were Edentified

The Responsible Officer has delivered the planned schedule of work and has reported findings on the operation

of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financiai responsibliities at Finance &
Audit Committee meetings. No material conlrol issues have been identified requiring remedial action.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

- Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Headmaster has responsibility for reviewing the-effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the Responsible Officer
the work of the external auditor;
the financial management and governance self-assessment process

“the work of the executive managers within the Academy. Trust who have responssbmty far.the development L

and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the |mp|icattons of the result of their review of the system of.internal
control by the Finance & Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous mprovement of the system is in
place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 4 December 2023 and signed on their behalf by:

Benedict Casemore | Philip Wﬁym»
o Casem ore ............................. o B Way n e ...............................
Chair of Governors Accounting Officer
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe | have considered my responsibitity to notify the
academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skilis Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance: with terms and conditions of ail funding, including for estates safety and - -
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, -
inciuding responsibilities for estates safety and management. . S

[ confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,

i confirm that no instances of material irregularity, improptiety or funding non-compliance have been discovered

to date, If any instances are identified after the date of this staterment, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

Philss Wayne

P B Wayne
Accounting Officer
Date: 4 December 2023
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEE'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Trustee (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustee's report and the financial statements In accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company taw,
the Trustee must not approve the financial statements unless they are satistied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustee are
required fo: : : B I : e

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; . e o :

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023; : ‘

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materiai departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company wili continue in business.

The Trustee are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the -
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustee are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustee are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 4 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by

Benedict Casemore

................................................

B Casemore
Chair of Governors
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'ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE _
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe: {the‘academy') for the year -
ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of
cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lrefand’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounis Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as-at. 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including s income and expenditura for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skilfs Funding

Agency.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financlal statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating {o events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorésed for issue,

Gur respon5|b|ht|es and the responssbmnes of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described |n the
relevant sections of this report.

Page 18




ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE {CONTINUED)

- Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual repart other than the financial statements
and our Auditors’ report thereon. The Trustee are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do nol express any form of assurance conclusion therson, Qur
responsibllity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the. audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise {o a material misstatement in.the financial -
statements themselves. Hf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there.is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard,
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the Trustee's Report incIUding the Strategic Repart far the financial year for Whiéh
the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financlal statements.
. the Trustee's Report and the Stralegic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its’ environment obtained in the course of =

the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustee's Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matiers in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 .
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returhs adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches nof visited by us; or

* the financial statements are nof in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustee's remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustee's responsibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law} are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or efror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to"
" continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting untess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease cperations,
or have no realistic alternative but o do so,
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL .
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE (CONTINUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate; they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

Irreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with taws and regulatzons We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of wregulantxes
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is

detailed below:

We considered the nature of the industry and its control environment, and reviewed the academy'documentation

of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations, We also enquzmd of .

management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregutarities.

‘We obtained an understandmg of the legal and regu!atory framework that the academy operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that:

s reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance,

¢« had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included the UK Companies Act and tax legislation; and

« do not have a direct effect on the financial staternents but compliance with which may he fundamental o the
charltable company’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty, - "

¢ We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist
within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

In common with all audits under [SAs (LK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the Judgements made in
making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any
significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks Identified included the following:

+ reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud,

« enguiring of management, and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims
and instances of non-compliance with laws and regutations; and

= reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

A further descnphon of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at; www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This - description forms -part - of our

Auditors' report.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE (CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jake Lew

Jake Lew (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on hehalf of
BKL Audit LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

35 Ballards Lane
L.ondon
N3 1XW

4 December 2023
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- govern them.

ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY .

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 July 2023 and further to the requirements-of the
Education and Skiils Funding Agency (ESFA) as included In the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Royal Grammar School High Wycombe during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Royal Grammar School High Wycombe and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to ‘Royal Grammar School High
Wycombe and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and far no other purpose, To the fullest
.extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other-than Royal Grammar School -
High Wycombe and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion.we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Royal Grammar School High Wycombe's accounting officer and
the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Royal Grammar School High Vycombe's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 February 2011 and the Academy Trust
Handbaook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which |

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out outr work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain Information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enabie Us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identifled in a reasonable assurance engagement, Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure,

The work undertaken te draw to our conclusion includes:

review of management reporting documents,

review of Trustees/Governors meeting minutes. oo

confirming compliance with the Academy Trust's Scheme of Delegation.

compliance with delegated authorities,

consideration of whether any personat benefit has been derived from the Academy Trust’s transactions by
staff or related parties.

J adherence to tendering policies.

. * ® 2 =
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee) o

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ROYAL
GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
(CONTINUED)

Conclusion
tn the course of our work, nothing has come to our aftenfion which suggest in all malerial respects the

expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

Reporting Accountant
BKL Audit LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor

35 Ballards Lane
London
N3 1XW

' Date: 4 December 2023
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTNITIES (INCORPORAT!NG INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from:

Donations and capital
grants

Other trading activities
Charitable activities
Boarding

Total income

Expenditure on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities
Boarding

. Total expenditure

Net
income/(expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised gains

Other recognised

~ gains:

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in
funds

" Reconciliation of

funds:

Total funds brought
forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 - 2023 2022
Note £ £ £ £ £
3 106,321 - 890,485 996,806 1,758,398
5 479,084 - - 479,084 404,606
4 523,450 8,692,257 - 8,215,707 8,406,544
30 1,068,664 - - 1,068,664 991,834
2,177,519 8,692,257 890,485 11,760,261 11,558,479
12,785 . - 12,785 8,443
7 558,716 8,806,346 258,269 9,623,331 9,369,627
30 1,003,184 - - 1,003,184 885,336
1,574,685 8,806,346 258,269 - 10,639,300 - 10,263,406
602,834 {114,089) 632,216 1,120,961 1,285,073

16 (674,243) 37,089 637,154 - -
{71,409) {77,000) 1,269,370 1,120,961 1,295,073
24 - 511,000 - 511,000 4,688,000
(71,4089) 434,000 1,269,370 1,631,961 5,983,073
623,035 (803,230) 6,610,976 6,430,781 44'7, 708
(71,409) 434,000 1,269,370 1,631,961 5,683,073
551,626 (369,230) 7,880,346 8,062,742 6,430,781

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year,

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these fEhanciaE étatements.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07492198

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts failing due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme iability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Fension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

12

13

14

15

24

16
16

16

18

18
16

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2,288,529
1,373,592

3,662,121

(1,782,716)

6,610,976
(20,230)

6,590,746
(783,000)

2023
£
7,947,191
7,947,191
1,110,584
1,443,674
2,554,258
(1,819,798)
734,460
8,681,651
(269,909)
8,411,742
(349,000)
8,062,742
7,880,346
(20,230)
7,860,116
(349,000)
7,511,116
551,626
8,062,742

2022

5,621,724

5,621,724

1,879,405

7,601,128

(287,348)

| 7,213,781

- (783,000)

6,430,751

5,807,746
623,035

6,430,781

The financial statements on pages 24 to 53 were approved by the Trustee, and authorised for issue on 04
December 2023 and are signed on their behalf, by:

Benedict Casemtore

B Casemore
Chair of Governors

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash prox;ided by/(used in) operating activities 18
Cash flows from investing activities 20
Cash flows from financing activities | 19 )
Change in cash and cash .eqy.iva[ents in the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 21, 22

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements

2022
£ .

2023
1,783,606 (219,459)
(1,693,251) 725,381
(20,273) (15,967)
70,082 489,955
1,373,592 883,637

1,443,674

1,373,592
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principai ac'co'unt'ing pdlicies adopted (w'hich'have béen applied consi'ster}ﬂy,'
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard -
Applicable in the UK and Republic of freland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reportlng by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of-lreland (FRS 102}
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006,

Going concern

The Trustee assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abiiity of
the Academy o continue as a going concern. The Trustee -make this- assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for Issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources ta continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements,

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has enh%lement to the funds the recelpt is
probabie and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of
income teceived for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entilement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are metl. Where
entittement ocours before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant Is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a fiability. ’ ' ' ' .

Capital grants are recognised in fult when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donaticns are recogmsed on a recewable basls (where there are no performance refated COﬂdlthnS)‘
where the receipt is. probable and the amount can be reliably. measured,

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

1.5

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in seftlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The cosls
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activily are aliocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Centra! staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for.its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

" Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and'GOSts
relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities,

Ali resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carri.ed at cost, nét of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. BRI e T

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions aftached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a reducing balance basis over
its expected usefui life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 2% - 7% per annum on cost
Fixtures and fittings - 10% - 33% per annum on cost
Computer equipment - 33% per annhum on cost

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shorifalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the setttement amount afier any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short mamrity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or apening of the de_posit or similar account,

Liabilities

Liabiiities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a resuit of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide,

Financial instruments

The Academy on;y holds basic ﬂnanmal mstruments as deﬂned in FRS 102 The ﬂnancsal assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financlal Instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financlal instruments.

Cash at bank Is classified as a basic financlal instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detajled-in notes 14 and 15, Taxation -and social security are not -
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition, Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.10 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of fmanczal aCtIVEtIeS ona streught—
line basis over the lease term. :
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL. HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.11 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated s6 as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is.a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll, The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the confributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate eguivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
squivalent term and currency to the liabifities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, caiculated
by muitiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and iosses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised galns and losses.

1.12 Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust act as an agent for the Staff Common Room Fund. Income from staff and
expenditure on the staff commeon room are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the
Academy Trust does not have control over the funds. The funds received and paid and any ba!ances
held are disclosed in note 27. : ‘

1.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustee,

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustee for pariicular
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are tc be apphed to specific caplital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise aif other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HiGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based . on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of ° future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulling accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the relaled actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

The present valus of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined henefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in nole 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarlal valuation wouid impact on the carrying amount of the pension-liability.

Income from donations and capital grants

. Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ ' £ £ SRR S
Donations 106,321 . - 663,930 770,251
Capital Grants - - - 226,555 226,555
106,321 - 890,485 996,806
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee) '

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from donations and capital grants (continued)

: .. Restricted :
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds - . funds funds
2022 2022 . 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Donations 54,730 94,605 796,358 945,693
Capital Grants - - 809,702 809,702
54,730 94,6085 1,606,060 1,755,395
Funding for the Academy's charitable activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023
£ e £
DIE/ESFA grants .
General Annual Grant {GAG) ' - 7,949,923 7,949,923
Other DFE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium - 50,610 50,610
Teachers pay - 83,043 83,043

Others - 337,246 337,246

: _ = ... 8,420,822 - 8,420,822
Other Government grants

Other local authority income - 94,731 94,731
- 94,731 94,731
Other income from the Academy's educational activities 523,450 176,704 700,154

593450 8,692,267 9,215,707

523450 8,692,257 9,215,707
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023.

Funding for the Academy's charitable activities (continued)

DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Qther DIE/ESFA grants
Pupil premium
Teachers pay
Teachers pension
- Others '

Other Government grants
Other [ocal authority income

Other income from the Academy's educational activities

COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding-

COVID-19 additional funding {non-DfE/ESFA)
Other COVID-18 funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022

£ £ £

- 7,586,096 7,586,098

- 45,923 45923

- 20,123 29,123
- 82,293 82,293 -

- 73,355 73,355

- 7,816,790 7,816,790

- 66,584 66,584

- 66,584 66,584
1,701 _ 478,490 48_0,191
- 24,895 24, 895

. 24,895 24,895

- 18,084 18,084

- . 18,084 18,084

- 1,701 - 8,404,843 - . 8,408,644
1,701 8,404,843 8,406,544
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

5. Income from other trading activities -

Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2023 2023
£ £

Lettings - 116,381 116,381

School shop income . - - 11,488 11,488 -

Other income _ 351,215 351,215
479,084 479,084
Unrestricted Total
funds funds
2022 . 2022
£ £
Lettings : : 111,671 111,671
Scheot shop income 20,279 20,279
Other income 272,656 272,656

404,606 404,606

6.  Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
Expenditure on fundraising trading acfivities;
Direct costs . _ . : T : - . 12,785 212,785 .
Educational activities: _ _
Direct costs 5,147,416 - 1,612,639 6,760,055
Allocated support costs 1,814,290 606,994 441,992 2,863,276
Boarding costs 466,328 348,765 190,091 1,003,184

7,428,034 953,769 - 2,257,507 10,639,300

Costs associated with the provision of boarding.faoilities include direcily attributable costs, allocated staff
costs and an allocation of general overheads, '
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Expenditure {(continued)

Expendifure on fundraising trading activities:

Direct costs
Educational activities:

Direct costs .
Allocated support costs
Teaching school

Analysis of expendifure by activities

Academy's educationat operations

Academy's educational operations

Staff Costs Other Total
2022 2022 2022
£ ' £ £
- 8,443 8,443
4,803,385 1,159,146 6,062,541
2,337,165 969,821 3,307,086
364,032 521,304 885,336
7,604,582 2,658814 10,263,406
Activities o o
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2023 2023 2023
£ £ £
6,760,055 2,863,276 9,623,331
Activities
underiaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2022 2022 2022
£ £ £
6,062,541 3,307,086 89,369,627 .
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Technology costs
Educational supplies
Examination fees
Educational consultancy
Staff costs and expenses
Other direct costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Technology costs
Educational supplies

~ Examination fees
Educational consuitancy -
Staff costs and expenses
Other direct costs

funds

Educational Total -
activities funds
2023 2023
£ £
5,147,416 5147,416
258,269 258,269
67,728 67,728
400,348 400,348
207,686 207,686
57,684 57,684
49,778 49,778
571,146 571,146
6,760,055 6,760,055
Educational - Total
activities
2022 2022
£ £
4,803,395 4,803,395
217,347 217,347
15,453 15,453
340,331 340,331
156,136 156,136 -~
45,648 45,648
51,969 51,969
332,262 332,262
6,062,541 6,062,541
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

" Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued). -

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs

Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Non cash pension costs

Pensicn finance costs
Staff costs

Technology costs
Premises costs

Lagal costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Non cash pension costs

Educational Total
activities funds
2023 2023
£ o

27,000 27,000
1,809,200 1,809,290
112,407 112,407
606,994 606,994
242,685 242,685
14,900 14,900
' 50,000 " 50,000
2,863,276 2,863,276
Educational Total
activities funds
2022 2022
© 76,000 76,000
1,737,165 1,737,165
95,773 95,773
551,872 551,872
5,407 5,407
- 218,558 218,558
. 22,311 22,311
600,000 600,000
3,307,086

3,307,086
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Net income/{expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

2023 2022
£ £
QOperating lease rentals 305,478 304,413
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 258,269 217,347
Fees pald to auditors for:
- audit . _ _ ‘ ... 1800 10,600
- other services 4,400 10,880
Staff
a. Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2023 ., 2022
B - £
Wages and salaries - : 5,601,801 5,294,492
Social security costs 554,946 538,559
Pension costs 1,215,237 1,171,541
7,371,984 7,004,692
Agency staff costs - o . ' 6,050 -
Non cash pension costs ' _ o o 50,000 - 600,000
7,428,034 7,604,592
b. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the Academy d_ur_ing the year was as follows:
2023 2022
No. No.
Teachers 89 92
Administration and support . 92 93
Management ' ‘ . ' I 2 2
183 187
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

8. Staff {continued)

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension cosis} exceeded

£60,000 was:
- 2023 . L2022
No. No.,
In the band £60,001 - £70,000 5 ' 4
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 2 1
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 1
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 1 1

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustee and the senicr management team
as listed onh page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Academy was £974,440 (2022 - £926,642).

10.  Trustee's remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contrasts of emplayment.
The value of Trustee's remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
P Wayne, Head teacher Remuneration 115,000 - 110,000 -
: ' 420,000 118,000
Pension contributions paid 25,000 - 25,000 -
_ 30,000 30,000
R Gilyeat, Staff Governor Remuneration o NIL 0 - 5000
Pension contributions paid NIL 0 - 5,000
S Tan, Staff Governor Remuneration NIL 50,000 -
55,000
Pensicn contributions paid NIL 10,000 -
15,000
M Goodier, Staff Governor Remuneration 45,000 - 35,000 -
' , 50,000 " 40,000
Pension contributions paid =~ - 10,000 - 5,000 -
. , . .. 15000 10,000
L Bignell, Staff Governor Remuneration 10,000 - 20,000 -
' 15,000 25,000
Pension contributions paid 0 - 5,000 0 - 5,000
T Fossey Remuneration 50,000 - 45,000 -
55,000 50,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 10,000 -
15,000 15,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustes expenses-have been incurred (2022 - £NIL).
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ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

‘Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

in accordance with normal comunercial practice, the Academy has purchased insurance fo protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions ceourring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £2,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the
year ended 31 August 2023 was £79 (2022 - £91). The cost of this insurance is included in the total

insurance cost.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023
Depreciation

At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2023

Net book value

At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022

Debtors '

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayments and accrued income
VAT recoverable

"Long-term’
© leasehold Fixtures and Computer
property fittings  equipment Total
£ £ £
6,218,236 666,303 608,476 7,493,015
2,470,910 81,548 '31,278 2,583,736
" 8,689,146 747',851' 639,754 10,076,751
857,215 483,789 530,287 1,871,291
178,572 28,420 51,277 258,269
1,035,787 512,209 '._581,564 2,129,560
7,653,359 235,642 58,190 7,947,191
5,361,021 182,514 78,189 5,621,724
2023 2022
£ £
286,230 256,127
50,141 6,806
. 605,761 1,967,837
168,452 57,759

1,110,584

2,288,629
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14, Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2023 2022

E £
Salix and CIF loans : 20,231 20,231
Trade creditors 517,787 463,294
Other taxation and social security 135,365 255,400
Boarding fees in advance 14,954 14,954
Other creditors 214,103 136,867
Accruals and deferred income - ‘ o ... 917,358, 881,870 .

< 1,819,798 © - 1,782,716

2023 2022

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 573,742 478,986
Resources deferred during the year 571,669 573,742
Amounts released from previous periods ' (573,742) (478,986)
571,669 573,742

Deferred income relates to boarding fees and trip monies received in advance for the nex{ academic year,

Included within creditors due within one year is a SALIX lcan for £12,685 due to ESFA. and repayable
over 8 years from March 2018, a second SALIX lean for £8,566 due to ESFA and repayable over 8 years
from September 2021 and a Condition kmprovement Fund loan for £980 due to ESFA and repayable over
10 years from September 2021 with an interest rate of 2,07%. No interest is charged on the SALIX loans.

15. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2023 2022

£ £

Salix and CIF loans 75,798 95,891
Boarding fees in-advance ' o " 15,856 30,810
Boarding deposits _ - 178,255 160,647

269,909 287,348

The aggregate amount of liabilities payable or repayable wholly or in part more than five years after the
reporting date is:

o ' ' ' ' o 2023 0 0 2022

i? | | | . R £

l Payable or repayable by instaiments o _ 20,273 21,313
20,273 21,313
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Included within creditors due after more than one year Is a SALIX loan for £31,713 (2022: £44,398) due to
ESFA, and repayable over 8 years from March 2019, a second SALIX loan for £36,108 (2022. £42,673)
due to ESFA and repayable over 8 years from September 2021 and a Condition Improvement Fund l.oan
for £7,977 (2022: £8,820) due to ESFA and repayable over 10 vyears from September 2021 with an
interest rate of 2 07%. No interest is charged on the SALIX Loans ‘

16. - Statement of funds

Balance at 1 ' ' Balance at

September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
Designated
funds : o
Boarding 167,772 1,068,664  (1,003,184) (46,781) - 186,471
General funds
General Funds -
all funds : 455,263 - 1,108,855 (571,501) (627,462} = 365,155
~ Total - '
Unrestricted : .
funds 623,035 2,177,519  (1,574,685)  (674,243) - 551,626
Restricted
general funds
General Annual ' : o ' :
Grants - 7,949,923  (7,987,012) 37,089 - -
‘Pupll premium - 50,610  {(50,610) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA ' ' :
revenue - 420,289 {420,289) - - -
SEN LA grants - 84,786 (84,786) - - -
Other LA grants - 9,945 (9,945} - - -
Salix loans {19,250) - - - - (19,250)
CIF loan (980) - ' - ' Coe - T {980)
General funds - 176,704 . (176,704) . . - T -
Pension reserve {783,000) - (77,000) . 511,000 (349,000)
(803,230) 8,692,257  (8,806,346) 37,089 511,000 {369,230)
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Statement of funds {continued)

Batance at 1 ' Balance at
September = . Transfers Gains/ 31 August

2022 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) - 2023

£ £ £ ' £ £ E

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Restricted Fixed
Asset Funds- all

funds . 5,621,724 60,947 (92,661) 637,154 " - 6,227,164

Devalved _ _ _ o : ‘

formula capital - " 165,608 (165,608) - . .

Capital ' '

improvement

fund 671,345 - - - - 671,345

Donations 413,800 663,930 - - - 1,077,730

Salix loans (87,070) - - - - {87,070)

CIF loan (8,823) .- , - e - (8,823) .
6,610,976 890,485 (258,269) 637,154 " . 7,880,346

Total Restricted
funds 5,807,746 9,682,742  (9,064,615) 674,243 511,000 7,511,116

Total funds 6,430,781 11,760,261 (10,639,300) . 511,000 8,062,742

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be apptied are as follows:

The Academy Trustees have designated an unrestricted fund which represents the surplus on boarding
over related fixed asset additions from boarding.

All unrestricted funds are held for the purpose of education in line with the Academy's objectives.

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the
Academy that has been provided to the Academy via the Education and Skiils Fundlng Agency and the
Department for Education. ) :

The transfer between the Restricted General Annual Grant fund and unrestricted funds is to eliminate the
deficit on GAG expenditure, and the transfer from unrestricted funds fo fixed assets represents amounts
spent on assets out of non grant income.

The pension reserve fund has been created to separately identify the pension deficit inherlted from the
locat authority upon conversion to academy status, and through which all the pension scheme movements

are recognised.

The Restricted Fixed Asset fund represents the net book value of capitalised fixed assets unspent capital -
grants and the balance of a Salix loan due in more than one year used to purchase capitaE items,

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit en the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023,
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16. Statement of funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows;

Balance at _ Balance at

1 September ' _ Transfers . Gains/ 31 August.
2021 Income  Expenditure infotit (Losses) C 2022

£ . £ - F o B R - £

Unrestricted
funds

Designated
funds

Boarding 61,174 991,634 (885,336) - - 167,772

Gen'erél funds

General

unrestricted :
funds 119,281 939,527 (483,761) (118,784) - 455,263

Total

Unrestricted
funds 180,455 1,831,461  (1,369,097) (118,784} - 623,035

Restricted
general funds

Genetal Annual
Grant (GAG) - 7,586,096  (7,534,575) (51,521)

Other local
authority grants - 66,584 {66,584) - - -

Pupil premium - 45,923 (45,923) e - .

Other DIE/ESFA . _ o L .
revente 32,639 184,771 (217,310) - - _ .

Other restricted
funds - 94,605 {94,605) - - -

Salix loans {19,250) - - - - {19,250}
CIF loan (980) - - - - (980)

Catch-up
premium 4,736 : - (4,736) - e o L

Other DFE/EFA
COIVD-19 - - _
funding - 24,895 (24,895) - - -

Other COVID-19
funding . 18,084 (18,084) . - .

Pension reserve  (4,795,000) - {678,000} - 4,688,000 (783,000

£
1

(4,777,955) 8,020,858 (8,682,712 (51,821) . 4,688,000 (803,230)
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Statement of funds (cbntinﬁed)

E’alance at

Balance‘at' .
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Restricted fixed - - o
assef funds 4,858,392 : - . (211,897) 87‘4,929 o - 5,621,724
Devolved o ’ o DR ' -
Formuia capital - 32,672 - (32,572) - -
Capital
improvement
fund 173,677 777,130 - {279,462) - 671,345
Donatichs 25,000 796,358 - {407,558) - 413,800
Salix loans (103,038) - - 15,968 S (87,070}
CIF loan (8,823) - - - - {8,823)
5,045,208 1,608,060 (211,597) 171,305 - 6,610,976
Total Restricted
funds 267,253 9,627,018  (8,894,309) 119,784 4,688,000 5,807,746
Total funds ' 447,708 11,568,479 (10,263,406) o '4,688,000 6,430,781
Analysis of net assets between funds
Analysis of net assets between funds - current year
Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset ~ Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 . ..2023 2023
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 79471491 7,847,491
Current assets 551,626 1,993,679 8,953 2,554,258
Creditars due within one year - (1,819,798) - {1,819,798)
Creditors due in more than one year - (184,111) {75,798} {269,909)
Provisions for liabifities and charges- - (349,000) o -(349,000)
Total ' ' 551,626 (369,230) - 7,880,346 8,062,742
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17.  Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Restricted .
Unrestricted.  Resiricted.  fixed asset . Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ . £ . £ . £
Tangible fixed assets - - 5,621,724 5,621,724
Current assets 623,035 1,953,841 1,085,145 3,662,121
Creditors due within one year - (1,782,716) - {1,782,716)
Creditors due in more than one year - {191,455) {95,893) {287,348)

‘Provisions for llabilities and charges - " (783,000) - (783,000

Total 623,035 (803,230) 6,610,976 = 6,430,787

18. Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

2023 2022

£ £

Net income for the year (as'per Statement of financial activitieé) ' 1,120,961 = 1,295,073

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 258,269 217,347

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (890,485} (1,606,060}

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable ‘ 50,000 600,000

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost - 27,000 76,0600
.Decrease/(increase) in debtors S : : 1,208,755 (1,308,866}

Increase in creditors : © 9,106 507,047

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,783,606 {219,459)

19. Cash flows from financing activities

2023 ' 2022

_ £ £

Repayments of Salix loan (20,273) {(15,967)

Net cash used in financing activities {20,273) {15,967)
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20.. Cash flows from investing acti\}itieé

2023 2022

£ £
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2,583,736) {880,679)
Capital grants from DfE Group 226,555 808,702
Capital funding received from sponsors and others L 663,930 _ 796,358
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities - _ (1,693,251} 725,381 .
21.  Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2023 2022
£ £
Cash in hand and at bank ' o a ' 1,443,674 f,373,59_2
Total cash and cash éqﬁivalents . ' . ' 1,443,674 1,373,592 _
22, Analysis of changes in net debt
At1
September At 31
2022 - Cash'flows August 2023
£ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 1,373,592 70,082 1,443,674
Debt due within 1 year (20,231) - (20,231)
Debt due after 1 year {95,891} 20,093 (75,798)

Boarding fees in advance (45,764) 14,954 {30,810)

1,211,706 .- 105129 1,316,835

23, Capital commitments

2023 2022
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements : '
Acquisition of tangible fixed assels . o _ o .- 724,289 . 2,131,322
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Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TP3)} for academic and related sfaff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Buckinghamshire County Councﬂ Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and the latest triennial
valuation for LGPS related to the period ended 31 March 2022. The Trust has recefved an actuarial report
relating to the valuation of the LGPS as at 31 August 2023.

Contributions amounting to £141,212 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £125,285}
and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined. benefit scheme, governed. by -
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies, All teachers have the option to apt-out of the TPS following enrolment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme fo which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuatlons and Employer Cost Cap} Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of bensfits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS impacting these
financial statements was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the
Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subseguent
consuitation are:

. empEoyer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
. levy) : :
. total scheme liabilities (pensuons currentty in payment and the estlmated cost of fufure beneflts) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the nctional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% ahove the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings, The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
" assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024,
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £874,495 (2022 - £843,346).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https:/fwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/newsfemployers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx}.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded mulii-empioyer pension scheme. The

Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contnbutlon scheme
The Academy has sef out above the information available on the scheme. : . S
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Pension commitments (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
adminlstered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £430,000 (2022 -
£422,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £334,000 (2022 - £330,000} and employees’

contributions totalled £96,000 (2022 - £92,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23, 0 per.
cent for employers and between 5.5 and 12,5 per cent for employees

Parliament has agreed at the request of the Secre{ary of State for Education, Eo a guarantee that in the
event of academy closure, outstanding L.ocal Government Pension Scheme liabiiities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment fo the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Buckinghamshire Pension Furid

2023 2022

_ % %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.90 398
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation 290 2.95
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.35 4.25
[nflation assumption (CP1) 2.90 2.95
Inflation (RPI) . _ ) . ' . 3.90 . 395

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient aliowance for future |mprovements in mortahty rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022

Years Years
Retiring today ,
Males : o - R ' S 200700 21.0
Females _ : . . 243 24.6 .
Refiring in 20 years B - _
Males - 22.0 22.3
Females 25.7 26.0

Page 49



ROYAL GRAMMAR SCHOOL HIGH WYCOMBE
{A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023
24. . Pension commitments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Buckinghamshire Pension Fund

2023 2022

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% {252} - {133)
Discount rate -0.1% 252 136
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase : - . {(260) - - (181)
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease _ e o 260 - 186
CPI rate +0.1% , | ' 268 131
CPl rate -0.1% 252 {128}

Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was;
At31 At 31 August
- August 2023 - - 2022

_ £ £
Equities 3,367,000 3,022,000
Gilts 438,000 434,000
Corporate bonds 587,000 692,000
Property 338,000 350,000
Cash and other liquid assets - . . : c o 758,000 133,000
Alternative assets and other | ‘ . . 1133000 . 797,000
Total market value of assets ' 5,938,000 5,428,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £3%,000 (2022 - £349,000}.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

2023 2002

_ _ £ £
Current service cost ‘ {379,000) {926,000)
Interest cost {27,000) {76,000)
Administrative expenses {5,000) {4,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities (411,000} (71,006,000)
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Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present vajue of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 20622

. £ £

At 1 September 6,211,000 10,369,000
Current service cost 379,000 926,000
Interest cost 265,000 170,000
Employee contributions 96,000 892,000
Actuarial gains . (604,000} (5,137,000)
Benefits paid . ﬁ . o .. (80,000) = (215,000)
At 31 August ' - 6,287,000 6,211,000

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assels were as follows:

2023 2022

£ £
At 1 September _ _ : .- ..+ 5,428,000 5,674,060 .
Interest income 238,000 94,000
Actuarial losses ‘ ' - - U (93,000) (443,000)
Employer contributions ' . 334,000 330,000
Employee contributions 96,000 82,000
Benefits paid (60,000} (215,000)
Admin expenses {5,000) {4,000)
At 31 August : ' - 5,938,000 5,428,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022

- £ - £

Not later than 1 year 7 _ : . 293,085 - 293,500
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years y . 1,154,492 1,075,124 . _

Later than 5 years 419,583 684,583

1,867,160 2,083,207
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Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be reguired, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabiiities contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy and the compaosition of the Board of Trustees heing drawn from [ocal
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustee have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2018 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

Wycombe Royal Grammar Schoof Foundation, a registered charity, holds the majority of the land and
bulldings in trust for use by the Academy Trust. During the year, the Foundation charged £265,000 (2022:
£275,412) for rent of the boarding accommodation and provided donations of £971,368 (2022: £985,106)
to promote the education of present and former pupils. The Academy Trust was owed £300,961 (2022:
£681,171) at the year end by Wycombe Royal Grammar School Foundaticn.

No other related party transactions tock place in the period of account, other thah certain Trustees'
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.

Post balance sheet event

The supreme court ruling on Harpur vs Brazel (2022) has upheld the ruling impacting holiday pay for part
time workers. Employers will now be required to revisit their historical holiday calculations to
retrospectively apply this ruling. Whilst this will create a liability for the trust, the government are yet to
produce guidance as to the specifics of the calculation required, and hence no accurate provision can
currently be made.

Agency arrangements
The Academy Trust distributes Staff Common Room Income and expenditure. In the accounting per.iod

ending 31 August 2023, the Academy Trust received £3,871 (2022: £3,212) and disbursed £5,677 (2022:
£4,262) from the fund. An amount of £1,806 (2022; £413) is included in other creditors. .
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30. Academy boarding trading account

2023 . 2023 - 2022 L2022 0

£ £ £ £
Income o
Direct income
Fee income 1,068,664 991,834
Total income ' 1,068,664 991,934
Expenditure’
Other expenditure -
Boarding staff costs ' ) 415,278 364,032
Buiiding maintenance 30,262 7,887
Rent and rates 270,459 280,626
Utilities 46,044 17,298
Catering costs 214,016 186,047
Other cosis™ - ' 27,425 o ' 29,346
Total other expenditure ' 1,003,184 R 885,336
Total expenditure 1,003,184 885,336
Capital expenditure (46,781) -
Surplus from all sources 18,699 106,598
Boarding balances at 1 September 2022 _ - 167,772 N 61,174
Bearding balances at 31 August 2023 ' . 186,471 - - - 167,772

Page 53




